Tivoli. IBM Tivoli License Compliance Manager

Version 2.3





License Migration and Creation

Tivoli. IBM Tivoli License Compliance Manager

Version 2.3





License Migration and Creation

Second Edition (February 2007)

This edition applies to version 2.3 of IBM Tivoli License Compliance Manager (program number 5724-D33) and to all subsequent releases and modifications until otherwise indicated in new editions.

© Copyright International Business Machines Corporation 2006. All rights reserved. US Government Users Restricted Rights – Use, duplication or disclosure restricted by GSA ADP Schedule Contract with IBM Corp.

## Contents

About this guide	v
Chapter 1. Overview	1
Deployment of Tivoli License Compliance Manager	. 1
The catalog of software products	. 2
Complex products	. 3
Licenses	. 5
Chapter 2. Migrating licenses	<b>7</b> . 7
Chapter 3. Creating a license and resolving shared components	9
Preparing to install a complex product	. 9
Generating and downloading electronic entitlements	11
Creating the license.	12
Mapping shared components	14
Notices	17
Trademarks	18

## About this guide

This document is designed to help you work with licenses using Tivoli<sup>®</sup> License Compliance Manager, version 2.3. It includes information and instructions for migrating licenses created using Tivoli License Compliance Manager, version 2.2 and for creating new licenses. It includes the following chapters:

- Chapter 1, "Overview," on page 1 which provides an overview of the means by which Tivoli License Compliance Manageris able to monitor the use of products and licenses.
- Chapter 2, "Migrating licenses," on page 7 which provides instructions for converting the per-processor licenses used with Tivoli License Compliance Manager, version 2.2 to the processor value unit licenses introduced with version 2.3.
- Chapter 3, "Creating a license and resolving shared components," on page 9 which provides a scenario describing the steps involved to ensure the correct monitoring of a product you plan to install.

About this guide

## **Chapter 1. Overview**

Monitoring of software and license use by Tivoli License Compliance Manager depends on the following:

- The deployment of the Tivoli License Compliance Manager agent on the operating systems where software use is to be monitored. See "Deployment of Tivoli License Compliance Manager"
- The inclusion of the software program whose use is to be monitored as an entry in the Tivoli License Compliance Manager catalog of software products. See "The catalog of software products" on page 2
- The management of complex products, which might require you to provide information about the deployment of these products in your environment. See "Complex products" on page 3.
- The creation of a license definition that determines how the level of use will be calculated, for example by using the sub-capacity counting rules. "Licenses" on page 5.

## **Deployment of Tivoli License Compliance Manager**

Figure 1 on page 2 shows the components of Tivoli License Compliance Manager deployed in a customer's environment to monitor the computers **Lab135061** and **Lab238246**, both of which have two partitions. An agent is deployed to monitor the use of software products in each partition.



Figure 1. Deployment of Tivoli License Compliance Manager

### The catalog of software products

The catalog of software products is a knowledge base, maintained by IBM<sup>®</sup>, that enables the agent to determine which software products are present and in use on a monitored computer. The catalog includes the following types of definition:

#### Product

Product definitions are held for each software product that can be detected by Tivoli License Compliance Manager. Each product is represented as a three-tier hierarchical structure of a software product, its versions, and releases. The purpose of the hierarchical structure is to provide levels at which licenses can be assigned and reports can be produced. For example you can define a license at release level to cover a single release or selected releases or you can define the license at a higher level to cover all releases in a selected version or the entire product.

#### Component

Each product release can contain one or more components. A component represents the actual physical program or part of a program that is installed in an environment. A component is always linked to at least one product at release level. It can be linked to more than one, in which case, the products that share the component are described as *complex products*. Products that do not share any components are described as *simple products*.

#### Signature

A definition of a file, registry entry, or other identifier included in the

catalog that is used by the Tivoli License Compliance Manager agent to identify software products installed or in use on monitored nodes. A signature is linked to a product component. The detection of a signature indicates the component is installed on the monitored computer.

#### **Complex products**

Complex products are products, which are included in the catalog and can be monitored and assigned to licenses, that share a component with another product. The inclusion of complex products in the catalog is designed to cover situations where software that is detected by the agent could potentially be licensed as part of more than one product. Examples of these situations include products that can be included in *bundles* and products that can be managed under a *reference products* license agreement.

Figure 2 illustrates a structure where some of the components of a product defined in the catalog are shared with other products.



Figure 2. A complex product structure

Art World 2.1 is a bundle that is available on Windows<sup>®</sup> and UNIX<sup>®</sup> systems. It provides a desktop from which the graphics programs Art Shop, 2.1 and Draw Pro 2.1 are available as an integrated graphics package. The license conditions for Art World 2.1 cover the installation and use of Art Shop 2.1 and Draw Pro 2.1. Art Shop 2.1 and Draw Pro 2.1 are both also available as independent licensed products.

The catalog definition, as illustrated in Figure 2 on page 3, identifies the installable programs for the products Art World 2.1, Art Shop 2.1, and Draw Pro 2.1 as components. The Windows and UNIX Art World components are not shared. If either is detected by an agent its use or presence can only be assigned to a license for Art World 2.1. The components of Art Shop and Draw Pro are shared. Their use or presence could be assigned to a license for Art World 2.1 or to licenses for Art Shop 2.1 and Draw Pro 2.1 respectively. The products Art World 2.1, Art Shop 2.1, and Draw Pro 2.1 are all complex products because they all contain shared components.

A similar structure would be used to describe the relationship between a reference product and its managed product. In this type of license agreement, the license use of the reference product depends on the level of use of the managed product. The product that acts as the managed product under the reference product agreement could however be licensed as a standalone product. The catalog would represent the installable software as a component. The component would be linked to the product structure of the reference product and to the product structure of the standalone product.

When a component is shared, the agent might not be able to identify the product that it belongs to using only the information in the catalog. Additional information about product deployment in your environment might be required. Tivoli License Compliance Manager adopts the following strategy to correctly assign shared components while minimizing the information you must supply:

- The discovery of complex products is disabled by default. If you create a license for a product, discovery is enabled. As long as only one of the products that share a component is enabled, Tivoli License Compliance Manager is able to automatically resolve the ownership of the shared component, mapping any instance of the shared component that is discovered to the enabled product.
- In cases where two or more products that share a component are enabled, you must provide information about the deployment of these products in your environment. For each agent that monitors a computer or partition where the shared component is installed, you must map the component to the appropriate product. Figure 3 on page 5 illustrates this type of scenario.



Figure 3. Shared components mapped to different licensed products

In the scenario illustrated by Figure 3, Tivoli License Compliance Manager discovers the presence of Art World 2.1 for UNIX, Art Shop 2.1 for UNIX and Draw Pro 2.1 for UNIX on host A and the presence of Draw Pro 2.1 for UNIX on Host B. The only available license for the Art World and Art Shop components is for Art World 2.1. Therefore all information collected by the agents for these two components is automatically assigned to the Art World product and license. For the two instances of the Draw Pro component there are two possible licenses: Art World 2.1 and Draw Pro 2.1.

Using tasks from the Manage Complex Product task group on the Web user interface, you must define mappings that identify the instance of Draw Pro 2.1 for UNIX installed on Host A as a component of Art World 2.1 and the instance installed on Host B as a component of Draw Pro 2.1.

#### Licenses

A Tivoli License Compliance Manager license comprises the following parts:

#### General and business information:

This includes license type, for example sub-capacity, and the licensed quantity.

#### Products covered by the license

A license can be assigned to one or more of the products that are included in the catalog. Each product in the catalog is organized in a hierarchical structure, formed by the product, versions of the product, and releases of each version. You can assign the license to a product at any of these levels.

#### License distributions

A license distribution determines the computers or partitions to which the license is applicable. The license can be open to all computers or could be limited to specified computers or partitions.

Careful definition of the license distribution enables you to have different license conditions for different installations of the same product. This is particularly important if you are using a product licensed under sub-capacity rules in the same environment as the same product that is licensed under a different agreement. In such a case, failure to limit the sub-capacity license to the node or partition where the sub-capacity product is running could result in use information originating from the non-sub-capacity installation of the product being included in the IBM report.

The task of creating new licenses eased by support for electronic entitlements. You can request and download electronic entitlements for processor-based licenses from the License Management Support site. The electronic entitlement is imported as part of the license creation task and automates the definition of the license, including assignment of the correct product.

## **Chapter 2. Migrating licenses**

This chapter provides instructions for migrating per-processor licenses, defined using Tivoli License Compliance Manager, version 2.2, to the processor value unit licenses that are introduced with version 2.3.

## Converting per-processor licenses to processor value unit licenses

Following upgrade to Tivoli License Compliance Manager, version 2.3, any new electronic entitlements you obtain will be for processor value unit licenses. Before creating a processor value unit license, you must convert all existing per-processor licenses to processor value unit licenses, using the **convertlic** command from the administration server command line interface.

The command converts the license type of each license as shown in

License type before conversion	License type after conversion
IPLA Sub-Capacity	IPLA Value Unit Sub-Capacity
IPLA Full Capacity	IPLA Value Unit Full Capacity
Install IPLA Sub-Capacity	Install IPLA Value Unit Sub-Capacity
Install IPLA Full Capacity	Install IPLA Full Capacity Install IPLA Value Unit Full Capacity

Table 1. License types before and after conversion

To convert all per-processor licenses that you have set up for IBM products, complete the following steps:

1. Open an administration server command line session:

#### Windows

Open the **Start** menu and click **Tivoli License Compliance Manager** >Admin CLI.

#### UNIX

- a. Open a shell window and change to the directory: <*INSTALL\_DIR*>/admin/cli
- b. Enter the command:

#### . ./tlmcli

**2**. Launch the command:

#### convertlic -a

**Migrating licenses** 

# Chapter 3. Creating a license and resolving shared components

This chapter provides a scenario that describes the creation of a new license for a complex product that is to be installed and the resolution of shared components of the complex product. See "Complex products" on page 3 for information about shared components.

## Preparing to install a complex product

A decision has been made to license WebSphere Application Server, version 6.0. The system resources manager determines where the product will be installed and the procurement manager requests an electronic entitlement from the License Management Support web site.

Figure 4 on page 10 shows the planned deployment of the product and the other products that are currently installed in the environment.



Figure 4. Proposed deployment of WebSphere Application Server 6.0

The WebSphere AS JVM 6.0 component, which will be installed in partition la238240, is already present in partition la238238 as part of the DB2 UDB Data Warehouse product. Currently the only product using this component is Data Warehouse, so the component installed in partition la238238 has been automatically mapped to the Data Warehouse product with no need for user intervention. Definition of the license for WebSphere Application Server 6.0 will enable discovery of the product in the environment with the result that when a new instance of the component is installed, it will not be possible to automatically determine the product to which it should be mapped.

The following tasks are required to ensure correct monitoring of the new and existing products:

- Obtain an electronic entitlement for WebSphere Application Server, version 6.0. See "Generating and downloading electronic entitlements" on page 11.
- Create a license for WebSphere Application Server, version 6.0. See "Creating the license" on page 12.

• Define the mapping to resolve ownership of the planned instance of the WebSphere AS JVM 6.0 component. See "Mapping shared components" on page 14.

#### Generating and downloading electronic entitlements

An electronic entitlement is a machine-readable file that contains information about a software license. It can be used to quickly define licenses for IBM products, avoiding errors that might occur when the definition of license information is done manually using the Web UI.

Authorized Passport Advantage Online users can access facilities on the License Management Support site to generate and download electronic entitlements.

To generate an electronic entitlement and download, complete the following steps:

- 1. Access the License Management Support site at the following Web address: http://www.ibm.com/software/lms and click **Sign in**.
- 2. Sign in using the IBM ID and password of an authorized Passport Advantage Online user for your organization.
- 3. Select License Manager set up and then Electronic entitlements.



4. Supply the name or program number of the product for which you require an entitlement and click **Go**.

BM Electronic entitlem	ents- product search - Microsoft Internet E	xplorer			
File Edit View Favorite	es Tools Help				3
🗢 Back 🔹 🤿 🚽 🙆 💋	🐴 🔕 Search 🝙 Favorites 🎯 Media 🤇	🧕 🔁 🖻 🖬 🕄	📽 😂		
	Epter a program pumber or			Sign out	:
	name		Go	→ Leave	the application?
				Mar	
				My care	
				→ Go to entitle	cart (0 electronic ements)
	Dividuat convert inclute				
	number Program description	Chargeable component	Char	ge unit	Part number
	5724J08 WebSphere Application Serve	er WAS	SubC Value	apacity Unit	D55XFLL
					D55XGLL
					D55XHLL
					E0263LL
					E0264LL
			Value	Unit	D55W8LL
					D55W9LL
					D55WELL
					D55WFLL
					E025QLL
					E025RLL
About IBM   Privacy	Contact				
1				A	Internet

5. Click the part number you require.

🖉 IBM Electronic entitlem	ents - generation options - Mi	crosoft Internet Explorer				
File Edit View Favorite	s Tools Help					
🗢 Back 🔹 🤿 🖉 👰	📸 🔯 Search 🛛 😹 Favorites	శి) Media 🧭 🛃 🚽 🥶 🖃 🗍 💭 🎲 🥞 🥸				
License management suppo <del>r</del> t	Electronic ent	itlements 🔺				
License manager setup	Generation options					
Electronic entitlements	Select product and license (	details to be applied when generating the				
<ul> <li>Processor value unit table</li> </ul>	electronic entitlement and select the Download button to download this file or the Add to cart button to generate more files before download.					
Help						
	Selected part					
	Part number	D55XFLL				
	Part description WebSphere App Svr Subcap Value Unit Lic+SW Maint 12 Mo					
	Electronic Entitlement	t				
	Program number	5724J08				
	Program description	WebSphere Application Server				
	Chargeable component	WAS				
	Release level	6.x -				
	IBM Tivoli License Compliance Manager Tool Version	2.3 •				
	License model	usage-sub-capacity				
	Charge unit	SubCapacity Value Unit				
	Quantity	100				
	Use type	• Normal				
	🕒 Back 🥫 Add to	o cart 🔮 Download 💌				
•						
🧉 Done		📄 🔒 🙋 Internet				

- 6. Check that this is the entitlement you require and enter the quantity required.
- 7. Click **Download** to save the electronic entitlement in your environment.

## Creating the license

To create a license using the electronic entitlement obtained from the License Management Support Web site, complete the following steps:

- 1. Log on to the Web UI as a procurement manager, license administrator, or administrator.
- 2. In the portfolio, click Manage licenses.

IBM Tivoli License Manager - Mozilla						_ 8 >
Tivoli, License Compliance Manager						iem.
a & .						Log off
Portfolio 💽			Manage L	icenses		i ? 🗙
Produce Reports Manage Batch Reports Manage Licenses	Search for a	or Licenses license according to lic	cense parameters.			
Assign Licenses Define Product Properties Schedule Software Scans	License nam	ie *L Al	icense type I	Contra	ict number	Search
▶ Manage Resources ▶ Manage Complex Products	* Delivery m January	onth +D	lelivery year 70			
Manage Infrastructure Manage Organizations	* Licenses					
Manage Access	Create	Create from file	Change Delete	Assign products	Distribute	
Define Custom Fields	Select	License name	License owner	Contract number	Total quantity	License type
Export IBM Use Return to the Organization Data Page	c	DB2UDBDW		-	30	IPLA Sub-Capacity
5 5	0	LIC_DB2_8.2	-	-	10	IPLA Sub-Capacity
	Page:	1 of 1 [ 1	Go Display	red 2 of 2		
	Close	Cancel				
🐝 🕮 🏏 🔝 🛛 Done			Minimise	All Windows 1		

3. Click Create from file.

<mark>∭</mark> IBՒ	M Tivoli License Manager - Mozilla	_ & ×
Tiv	roll. License Compliance Manager	IBM.
		Log off
•	Manage Licenses	i ? X
	Import Electronic Entitlement	
	Import Electronic Entitlement file	
	import an Electronic Entitlement me	
	* Electronic Entitlement file	
	WAS6.0.xml Browse	
	«Back Next» Finish Close Cancel	
285	El 🖋 El Done	<b>.</b>
496		

4. Type the path name of the electronic entitlement file or click **Browse** to select the file. Click **Next**.

IBM	l Tivoli License Manager - Moz	illa				
Tivo	II. License Compliance Mai	nager			R	IBN.
<u>í</u>	86					<u>Log off</u>
Ð		Mana	ge Licenses			i?×
	Business information	Create or Modify Licens	e			
	Legal information	Create or modify the parameter	s of the licen	se, and link it with a pro	duct in the catalog.	
		Vendor	Product ID	Product name		
		IBM	17060	WebSphere Application	Server	
		*License name				
		WAS60				
		*License type	Y		*Total quantity 100	
		Total cost Currenc	y •		Purchase type	
		*Start date 3 / 8 / 2007	]		*Expiration date 3 / 8 /	2007
	OK Apply Reset	Close				
  ∰	la 🎸 🖬					

The Vendor, Product ID, Product, and License Type are taken from the electronic entitlement and cannot be changed.

5. Complete the remaining information and click **OK**.

## Mapping shared components

Following the creation of the license for WebSphere Application Server, version 6.0, any new instance of the WebSphere AS JVM 6.0 component has two potential owners: WebSphere Application Server, version 6.0 and DB2 UDB Data Warehouse, version 8.2. The currently installed instance of the component was automatically mapped to the DB2 UDB Data Warehouse when the component had only one potential owner and needs no further action. For the planned instance, you must use the Map Complex Products task on the Web UI to provide the information needed to resolve the ownership of the shared component.

To map the shared component, complete the following steps:

- 1. Log on to the Web UI as system resources manager or administrator.
- 2. In the portfolio, click Manage Complex Products ► Map Complex Products.

	er - Mozilla		_ 8
li. License Complia	nce Manager		IBM.
8 & I			Log of
	Map Comple	x Products	i ? )
Select Comple	r Product		
Select the complex	product release whose mapping you want to define.		
* Software vendor All 1Soft Corporation 1Vision Software Ir 2Market	c +SW platform	Product name WebSphere Applicati ✓ Products that have a license □ Products that have components installed □ Roducts that have components installed	Search
		Products whose mapping has already been delined	
* Complex produc	release selection	Vendor	
<ul> <li>Complex produc</li> <li>Select</li> <li>C</li> </ul>	release selection Product name WebSphere Application Server 5.0.*	Vendor IBM	
* Complex produc Select C	release selection Product name WebSphere Application Server 5.0.* WebSphere Application Server 5.1.*	Vendor IBM IBM	
* Complex produc Select C C	release selection Product name WebSphere Application Server 5.0.* WebSphere Application Server 5.1.* WebSphere Application Server 6.0.*	Vendor IBM IBM IBM	
* Complex produc	release selection       Product name       WebSphere Application Server 5.0.*       WebSphere Application Server 5.1.*       WebSphere Application Server 6.0.*       WebSphere Application Server Enterprise Edition 5.0.*	Vendor IBM IBM IBM IBM IBM IBM	
* Complex produc Select C C C	release selection Product name WebSphere Application Server 5.0.* WebSphere Application Server 6.0.* WebSphere Application Server 6.0.* WebSphere Application Server Tenterprise Edition 5.0.*	Vendor IBM IBM IBM IBM IBM IBM IBM IBM IBM	
* Complex produc Select C C C C C	release selection	Vendor     IBM	
Complex produce Select C C C C C Page: 1 of 2	release selection Product name WebSphere Application Server 5.0.* WebSphere Application Server 6.0.* WebSphere Application Server 6.0.* WebSphere Application Server Network Deployment 5.0. WebSphere Application Server Network Deployment 5.1.  1 00 Displayed 6 of 7	Products wridse mapping has already been beinned     IBM     IBM     IBM     IBM     IBM     IBM     IBM     IBM     IBM	
Complex product Select C C C C C Page: 1 of 2 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	release selection Product name WebSphere Application Server 5.0.* WebSphere Application Server 5.1.* WebSphere Application Server 6.0.* WebSphere Application Server Network Deployment 5.0. WebSphere Application Server Network Deployment 5.1. D T O T O D Finish Apply Close Cancel	Products writes mapping has already been beinned     IBM     IBM     IBM     IBM     IBM     IBM     IBM     IBM	

**3**. Clear the **Products that have components** installed check box and search for the WebSphere Application Server product, select it and click **Next**.

👿 IBM	Tivoli License Ma	anager - Mozilla					<u>_ 5 ×</u>
Tivo	l <mark>i.</mark> License Cor	npliance Manag	ər				RIA III.
<u></u>	86						Log off
•				Map Compl	ex Products		i ? X
	Define Map	ping of Com	olex Product				
	Select compone	ents and agents	and define the ma	pping.			
	Complex proc WebSp Web Web Web	duct structure ohere Applicat oSphere Appli oSphere Appli oSphere Appli	ion Server 6.0. cation Server 6 cation Server 6	MVL 0.0	+ Divisions All London_Customer Magnum I Departr Moscow_Customer Agent name	ment er	+ SW platform
		Remove link	Create specific I	ink Create generic link			
	Select	Agent name		Component Name, Version and Platform	Installations	Link Type	Install Path
	No data is curr	rently available.					
	< Back Ca	ancel					
***	🎒 🎸 🚨	Done			₽ ₽		

4. Click Create generic link.

* Complex pr	oduct structure Sphere Application Server 6. ebSphere Application Server ebSphere Application Server	).* 6.0.JVM 6.0.0 JVM	* Divisions All London_Custome Magnum I Depart Moscow_Custom Agent name	r ment er	* SW platform
* Eligible ge	aneric links for complex product	Component Name, Version	Current debal opposite links	th components ins	talled Search Current global
- Select	I-220220 servelak ik ikur asur	and Platform WebSphere Application	o	opecilic illiks	generic links
	laz30230.rumelab.it.ibm.com	Server 6.0 JVM	U	U	U
P	la238240	WebSphere Application Server 6.0 JVM	0	0	0
	la238244	WebSphere Application Server 6.0 JVM	0	0	0
	la238246.romelab.it.ibm.com	WebSphere Application Server 6.0 JVM	0	0	0
	lab135061	WebSphere Application Server 6.0 JVM	0	0	0
	lab237034.romelab.it.ibm.com	WebSphere Application Server 6.0 JVM	0	0	0
Page: 1	lab237034.romelab.it.ibm.com	WebSphere Application Server 6.0 JVM Go Displayed 6 of 6	0	0	0

- 5. Select the WebSphere Application Server 6.0 JVM component on agent la238240.
- 6. Click Finish.

## Notices

This information was developed for products and services offered in the U.S.A. IBM may not offer the products, services, or features discussed in this document in other countries. Consult your local IBM representative for information on the products and services currently available in your area. Any reference to an IBM product, program, or service is not intended to state or imply that only that IBM product, program, or service may be used. Any functionally equivalent product, program, or service that does not infringe any IBM intellectual property right may be used instead. However, it is the user's responsibility to evaluate and verify the operation of any non-IBM product, program, or service.

IBM may have patents or pending patent applications covering subject matter described in this document. The furnishing of this document does not give you any license to these patents. You can send license inquiries, in writing, to:

IBM Director of Licensing IBM Corporation North Castle Drive Armonk, NY 10504-178, U.S.A.

For license inquiries regarding double-byte (DBCS) information, contact the IBM Intellectual Property Department in your country or send inquiries, in writing, to:

IBM World Trade Asia Corporation Licensing 2-31 Roppongi 3-chome, Minato-ku Tokyo 106, Japan

The following paragraph does not apply to the United Kingdom or any other country where such provisions are inconsistent with local law:

INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES CORPORATION PROVIDES THIS PUBLICATION "AS IS" WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF NON-INFRINGEMENT, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

Some states do not allow disclaimer of express or implied warranties in certain transactions, therefore, this statement might not apply to you.

This information could include technical inaccuracies or typographical errors. Changes are periodically made to the information herein; these changes will be incorporated in new editions of the publication. IBM may make improvements and/or changes in the product(s) and/or the program(s) described in this publication at any time without notice.

Any references in this information to non-IBM Web sites are provided for convenience only and do not in any manner serve as an endorsement of those Web sites. The materials at those Web sites are not part of the materials for this IBM product and use of those Web sites is at your own risk. IBM may use or distribute any of the information you supply in any way it believes appropriate without incurring any obligation to you.

Licensees of this program who wish to have information about it for the purpose of enabling: (i) the exchange of information between independently created programs and other programs (including this one) and (ii) the mutual use of the information which has been exchanged, should contact:

IBM Corporation 2Z4A/101 11400 Burnet Road Austin, TX 78758 U.S.A.

Such information may be available, subject to appropriate terms and conditions, including in some cases, payment of a fee.

The licensed program described in this document and all licensed material available for it are provided by IBM under terms of the IBM Customer Agreement, IBM International Program License Agreement or any equivalent agreement between us.

If you are viewing this information in softcopy form, the photographs and color illustrations might not appear.

### Trademarks

The following terms are trademarks of the IBM Corporation in the United States or other countries or both:

IBM The IBM logo DB2 DB2 Universal Database Tivoli WebSphere



Java and all Java-based trademarks and logos are trademarks or registered trademarks of Sun Microsystems, Inc. in the U.S., and other countries.

Microsoft<sup>®</sup>, Windows, and the Windows logo are registered trademarks, of Microsoft Corporation in the U.S. and other countries.

UNIX is a registered trademark of The Open Group in the United States and other countries.

Other company, product, and service names may be trademarks or service marks of others.



Program Number: 5724-D33